



NEOASA's Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules and Regulations

Revision F – June 16, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. CONSTITUTION	1
A. Article I - Name	1
B. Article II - Purpose	1
C. Article III - Membership and Government.....	1
1. Section 1.....	1
2. Section 2.....	1
D. Article IV - Affiliation.....	1
E. Article V - Amendments.....	1
F. Article VI.....	1
 II. BY-LAWS	 2
A. Article I - Members	2
1. Section 1.....	2
2. Section 2.....	2
3. Section 3.....	2
4. Section 4.....	3
5. Section 5.....	3
6. Section 6.....	3
B. Article II - Officers.....	3
1. Section 1.....	3
2. Section 2.....	3
3. Section 3.....	4
4. Section 4.....	4
5. Section 5.....	4
6. Section 6.....	4
7. Section 7.....	4
8. Section 8.....	5
9. Section 9.....	5
10. Section 10.....	5
C. Article III - Meetings.....	6
1. Section 1.....	6
2. Section 2.....	6
3. Section 3.....	6
4. Section 4.....	6
5. Section 5.....	6
6. Section 6.....	6
7. Section 7.....	7
8. Section 8.....	7
9. Section 9.....	7
D. Article IV - Executive Committee.....	7
1. Section 1.....	7
2. Section 2.....	7
3. Section 3.....	7
4. Section 4.....	7
5. Section 5.....	7
E. Article V - Finances.....	8
1. Section 1.....	8
2. Section 2.....	8
3. Section 3.....	8
4. Section 4.....	8
5. Section 5.....	8
6. Section 6.....	8
F. Article VI - Committees	9

1.	Section 1.....	9
2.	Section 2.....	9
3.	Section 3.....	9
4.	Section 4.....	9
5.	Section 5.....	9
6.	Section 6.....	9
G.	Article VII - Delegations	10
H.	Article VIII - Right of Appeal.....	10
I.	Article IX - Parliamentary Authority.....	10
J.	Article X - Amendments of By-Laws	10
III.	RULES AND REGULATIONS	11
A.	Soccer Year.....	11
B.	Affiliation Fees	11
C.	Divisions of the NEOASA League.....	11
D.	Performance Bond.....	11
E.	Insurance.....	12
F.	Division Schedules	12
G.	Division Standings	13
1.	Reporting of Results and Standings	13
2.	Tie-Breaking.....	14
a.	Play-Off Games.....	14
b.	Seasonal Composition of Divisions.....	14
H.	Team Size	16
I.	Uniforms.....	16
J.	Playing Field	16
K.	Playing Eligibility	16
1.	Youth Amateur Players	17
2.	Senior Amateur Players.....	17
3.	Amateur Master's and Over Twenty-Five Division Players.....	17
4.	Professional Players	17
L.	Player Registration	18
1.	Procedures for Registration	18
M.	Player Transfer.....	19
1.	Transfer Limitations.....	19
N.	Player Passes.....	19
O.	Registration Violations	20
P.	Team Rosters	20
Q.	Official Game Lineup Forms	21
R.	Late Arriving Players.....	21
S.	Substitution	21
T.	Player Suspension (Yellow Card).....	22
U.	Ejection's - Player, Coach, or Spectator Suspensions.....	22
V.	Officiating.....	23
W.	Referee Evaluation	23
X.	Forfeiture	23
1.	Game Forfeiture for Non-Performance	23
2.	Game Forfeiture.....	24
Y.	Imposition and Review of Disciplinary Action and Review of Game Rulings	24
1.	Jurisdiction of NEOASA Appeals and Disciplinary Committee.....	24
a.	Disciplinary Action Not Subject of a Game Ruling.....	24
b.	Appeals of Game Rulings	25
2.	Procedures of Appeals Not Subject of a Game Ruling.....	25
a.	Disciplinary Action Not Subject of a Game ruling.....	25
(1)	Automatic Disciplinary Action.....	25
(2)	Discretionary Disciplinary Action	26

b.	Appeals of Game Rulings	27
3.	Appeals from the Committee.....	28
4.	Other Committee Rules.....	29
Z.	Small Side Club, Leagues and Competitions	30
ZZ.	State Championship Format.....	31
IV.	EXHIBITS	32

I. CONSTITUTION

A. Article I - Name

The name of this Association shall be the NORTHEAST OKLAHOMA ADULT SOCCER ASSOCIATION, hereinafter referred to as the ASSOCIATION.

B. Article II - Purpose

The purpose for which this Association is formed is to promote the development of the sport of adult soccer, through organization and competition, within the territory under its jurisdiction and to guard the interest of its members.

C. Article III - Membership and Government

1. Section 1

The membership of this Association shall be set out in the by-laws, which shall prescribe the membership, the membership qualifications, the provisions for admission of new members, the voting rights of members, and the provision for termination of membership.

2. Section 2

The government and the control and management of all properties of this Association shall be vested in the Executive Committee as set out in the by-laws, which shall provide for the election of officers of this Association, their terms of office, their powers and their duties.

D. Article IV - Affiliation

This Association shall be affiliated with the United States Soccer Federation, Inc. (USSF). The Association shall be subject to the Constitution and Rules and Standing Orders of the USSF, insofar as the same affect the game of soccer and prescribe the functions of NEOASA.

E. Article V - Amendments

Amendments to this Constitution shall be made in the same manner as amendments to the by-laws.

F. Article VI

The effective date of this Constitution shall be February 20th, 1987.

II. BY-LAWS

A. Article I - Members

1. Section 1

Any soccer team or organization of two or more soccer teams affiliated with one another as a club or league (herein called "member") in the Green Country area shall be admitted to membership in the North East Oklahoma Adult Soccer Association (NEOASA) upon written application to NEOASA Executive Committee, if all requirements for admission to membership are met and a majority of NEOASA's members present and voting finds that such admission is in the best interest of soccer. The Executive Committee shall establish the procedure(s) for application for admission to and the requirements for membership in NEOASA. Applications submitted by a club or league shall include copies of the applicant's Constitution, By-Laws, Rules and Regulations or Rules of Competition, officers and directors and a map of any geographic area of competition. Applications for membership also shall be accompanied by payment of all dues and fees for admission and affiliation as a member as determined by the Executive Committee.

2. Section 2

The Green Country area is comprised of the following counties within the State of Oklahoma.

1. Tulsa
2. Okmulgee
3. Osage
4. Washington
5. Pawnee
6. Creek
7. Muskogee
8. Wagoner
9. Cherokee
10. Adair
11. Delaware
12. Ottawa
13. Craig
14. Mayes
15. Rogers
16. Nowata
17. Okfuskee

3. Section 3

A member of NEOASA shall be eligible for competition and attend meetings only while in good standing with respect to the payment of dues and fees.

4. Section 4

Each member of NEOASA shall require all players to register with the United States Soccer Federation, Inc., herein referred to as USSF.

5. Section 5

Honorary membership in NEOASA may be extended by the Executive Committee to any person upon concurrence of two-thirds of the votes cast at a membership meeting. Honorary members shall be eligible to vote in such meetings.

6. Section 6

The membership of any member may be terminated upon concurrence of two-thirds of NEOASA's members present and voting at a membership meeting.

B. Article II - Officers

1. Section 1

The officers of NEOASA shall be a President, three Vice-Presidents (First, Second, & Third), and a Secretary-Treasurer. These officers shall comprise the voting members of the Executive Committee. The voting representative elected by each member which is a club or league (herein called "League Commissioner") shall be a non-voting member of the Executive Committee.

2. Section 2

All officers shall be elected by ballot. NEOASA's officers shall be elected to a term of two (2) years or until their successors are elected and may succeed themselves in office. No one officer may hold two (2) offices at one time. Any officer wishing to run for a different office, before their tenure has expired, may do so. If an officer is elected to a second office, that officer must choose the office they wish to hold and immediately resign the other office. Elections shall be held at the Annual Meeting with one-half (1/2) of the Executive Officers being elected each year. The Executive Officers, whose duties shall be to transact the business of this Association, shall consist of:

President – elected in even numbered years
First Vice President – elected in odd numbered years
Second Vice President – elected in even numbered years
Third Vice President – elected in odd numbered years
Secretary-Treasurer – elected in even numbered years

3. Section 3

The President shall preside at all meetings of NEOASA and the Executive Committee. He or she shall be the general manager of NEOASA, shall supervise all Association affairs and activities, and shall make an annual report to the membership. He or she shall be an ex-officio member of all committees and shall appoint the members of all committees not otherwise determined by these By-Laws.

4. Section 4

The First Vice-President shall act in the absence of the President with the same power and authority. He or she shall be Chairman of the Appeals and Disciplinary Committee (ADC) and shall make a written record of all ADC decisions available to the membership. He or she shall also act as the Chairman of the Games Rules Committee.

5. Section 5

The Second Vice-President shall act as the Chairman of the Scheduling Committee, shall assist the President in the formulation and execution of NEOASA policies regarding the development, maintenance, improvement, assignment and scheduling of fields, shall act as the Chairman of the Field Committee and shall be one of NEOASA's voting representatives on the JSC/NEOASA Field Management Committee ("FMC").

6. Section 6

The Secretary-Treasurer shall keep a permanent record of the minutes of all meetings, shall be custodian of all official records of NEOASA, shall write and mail any correspondence as directed by the President and Executive Committee, shall notify each member of all membership meetings, shall have custody of all funds of the Association, shall keep the books of the Association, disburse funds with proper concurrence of the President and Executive Committee, shall make a written financial reports available to the membership at least semi-annually, and shall be Chairman of the Finance Committee.

7. Section 7

The Third Vice President shall organize, promote and account for all receipts and expenses of NEOASA sponsored tournaments and any other special competitions and shall have primary responsibility for the marketing, sponsorship and promotion of all NEOASA activities.

8. Section 8

The Executive Committee shall set registration procedures, receive registration fees and forms, maintain a directory of all players, immediately deposit to NEOASA's account all funds received and maintain and forward a written record of the same to the Secretary-Treasurer. The Executive Committee may employ one or more administrators or other employees and delegate the performance of registration duties and such other duties as the Executive Committee may deem advisable to such administrator(s) and employees.

9. Section 9

The voting representative of member teams affiliated as clubs or leagues shall be "League Commissioners". League Commissioners shall be elected by ballot to represent their respective clubs or leagues. They shall serve for two (2) years or until their successors are elected. Their terms of office shall begin at the close of the Annual Meeting at which they are elected. No individual shall simultaneously hold more than one (1) office. All League Commissioners shall be elected in odd numbered years.

10. Section 10

Any officer who is determined to be failing to perform his/her duties as required by the Bylaws and as specified by motion requesting such officer's resignation approved by a majority of the Executive Committee may submit his/her written resignation upon approval of such motion. Before such a motion is presented to the Executive Committee each officer who is the subject of such a motion shall be given at least 72 hours notice of the date, time and location of the Executive Committee meeting as well as a copy of the motion to be presented at such meeting requesting his/her resignation. The motion shall specify the particular duties which the officer has failed to perform. Upon approval of such a motion and failure of the officer to submit to the President his/her written resignation, the Executive Committee may present a motion for removal of such officer to the Membership at the next Membership meeting. Such a motion will remove and terminate the officer upon approval by a majority of the Membership present and voting at the Membership meeting. Upon approval of such a motion and the removal of an officer, the Executive Committee at the same Membership meeting immediately may propose to the Membership one or more nominees for election to complete the term of any officer who has been removed; provided, that nominations also shall be taken from the floor. Elections shall be by secret ballot and the nominee elected will serve the remaining term of the officer who has been removed.

C. Article III - Meetings

1. Section 1

Membership meetings shall be held during the months of January, May, August, and December at a time and place determined by the Executive Committee. Additional “special” membership meetings may be called by the Executive Committee as herein provided.

2. Section 2

The membership meeting in January shall be known as the Annual Meeting and shall be for the purpose of electing officers, receiving reports from other officers and committees, and for any other business that shall arise.

3. Section 3

At the meeting preceding the Annual Meeting, a Nominating Committee of three (3) individuals shall be elected by the membership to nominate candidates for the officers to be filled. The Committee shall present a list of candidates at the Annual Meeting. Additional nominations from the floor shall be allowed at the Annual Meeting.

4. Section 4

Special membership meetings shall be called upon request by three (3) members of the Executive Committee. The purpose of the meeting shall be stated in the call. Except in an emergency, at least fifteen (15) days shall elapse between the notice and the meeting.

5. Section 5

At the membership meeting each officer shall have one (1) vote and each member shall have one (1) vote for each affiliated team of such member in good standing. All votes of a member shall be cast by its voting representative. Motions shall be made only by a member’s voting representative or by NEOASA’s officers or League Commissioners. The Secretary-Treasurer shall determine the eligibility of members and their voting representatives to vote at the membership meeting and shall count, record and report all votes cast at membership meetings.

6. Section 6

The voting representatives for each member must be a Team Representative or be an officer or director of each member which is a club or league or have written proxy to vote for such member.

7. Section 7

An officer of NEOASA also may act as a member's voting representative and may vote as both a member's voting representative and an officer.

8. Section 8

The presence of voting representatives of members and officers holding fifty (50) percent of the total eligible votes of the Association shall constitute a quorum at a membership meeting.

9. Section 9

Participation in a membership meeting shall be limited to those members voting representatives whose credentials have been approved by the Secretary-Treasurer, and to such other individuals authorized by the Executive Committee.

D. Article IV - Executive Committee

1. Section 1

The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the officers of the Association as voting members and the League Commissioners as non-voting members.

2. Section 2

The Executive Committee shall have control and management of the Association and its property and monies.

3. Section 3

The Executive Committee shall hold not less than three (3) meetings per year at a time and place to be determined by the President. All meetings shall require forty-eight (48) hours notice.

4. Section 4

Each officer shall have one (1) vote at meetings of the Executive Committee. Absentee votes shall not be permitted.

5. Section 5

Actions of the Executive Committee may be overruled at the next membership meeting by concurrence of two-thirds of the members present and voting.

E. Article V - Finances

1. Section 1

The funds of the Association shall be deposited by the Secretary-Treasurer in a bank to be named by the Executive Committee.

2. Section 2

Disbursement from the general Association funds shall be only by the signature of the Secretary-Treasurer with prior concurrence of the President or a named designated representative appointed by the President.

3. Section 3

Special funds may be set aside for special committee use by the Executive Committee. Those funds may be disbursed by the Committee Chairman. Accounting of the special funds are to be made monthly to the Secretary-Treasurer.

4. Section 4

The fiscal year shall be September 1 through August 31. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year the Secretary-Treasurer shall prepare a budget of estimated income and expenditures for the ensuing year. The budget shall be submitted to the Executive Committee for approval. Upon approval, the budget shall stand as the limit of expenditures for the purposes specified. Additional expenditures, whether in excess of the budget or for other purposes, shall not be made without prior approval of the Executive Committee.

5. Section 5

The Executive Committee may engage the services of an accountant who shall not be a member of the Executive Committee or hold a position with the Association to prepare and make available to the Secretary-Treasurer, the Executive Committee and the membership end of fiscal year financial statements at the December membership meeting.

6. Section 6

Dues and fees shall be set by the Executive Committee.

F. Article VI - Committees

1. Section 1

The Finance Committee shall consist of the Association officers.

2. Section 2

The Tournament Committee shall organize and administer all tournaments and other special competition(s) organized and/or sponsored by NEOASA.

3. Section 3

The Games Rules Committee shall formulate and propose rules and/or changes to NEOASA's Rules and Regulations governing soccer competition under the jurisdiction of NEOASA.

4. Section 4

The Scheduling Committee shall be responsible for game scheduling. Game scheduling shall be submitted to the Executive Committee subject to approval by the membership.

5. Section 5

The Appeals and Disciplinary Committee (ADC) shall have exclusive jurisdiction to interpret and enforce NEOASA's Rules and Regulations and to hear and determine all appeals concerning game rulings.

6. Section 6

Such other committees, standing or special, shall be appointed by the President as he or she shall from time to time deem necessary to carry on the work of the Association. The President shall be ex-officio a member of all committees except the Nominating Committee.

G. Article VII - Delegations

Delegations shall be appointed by the President to represent NEOASA at any convention, meeting, or assembly. No delegate shall have authority to bind or obligate NEOASA to any expense or to take any action contrary to NEOASA's Constitution, By-Laws, Rules and Regulations and resolutions enacted by the Executive Committee or the membership. The President may serve as Chairman of Delegation or may appoint a member to serve in his or her stead.

H. Article VIII - Right of Appeal

Decisions of NEOASA may be appealed to the USSF, provided the rules of the USSF have been complied with prior to the making such appeal.

I. Article IX - Parliamentary Authority

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern NEOASA to the extent they are applicable and are not inconsistent with NEOASA's Constitution, these By-Laws and any resolutions or special rules of order enacted by the Executive Committee or the membership.

J. Article X - Amendments of By-Laws

These By-Laws can be amended at any membership meeting by a majority of the total eligible votes of the members, provided that the amendment has been submitted in writing at the previous meeting.

III. RULES AND REGULATIONS

A. Soccer Year

The soccer year of the USSF, NEOASA is September 1 through the following August 31. Player registration, affiliation fees, and the optional insurance coverage all cover this period. For information concerning NEOASA season schedules, see Article F DIVISION SCHEDULES.

B. Affiliation Fees

Each member team of NEOASA shall pay an affiliation fee to NEOASA for each soccer year. This fee shall provide funds for NEOASA's normal operating expenses. For each soccer year, the Executive Committee shall set the amount of the affiliation fee. See Article V, Section 6 of the By-Laws of NEOASA.

C. Divisions of the NEOASA League

The names and numbers of the divisions within NEOASA and the requirements for admission of member teams thereto shall be set by the Executive Committee, subject to these Rules and Regulations.

D. Performance Bond

In addition to paying an affiliation fee, each member team entering NEOASA shall be required to post and maintain a Performance Bond. This bond shall be returned upon request after the last game of the year if the member team then is in good standing with NEOASA. The purpose of this bond shall be to insure the member team's performance in accordance with this Article, Article X - FORFEITURE, and to insure its satisfaction of financial obligations to NEOASA. This bond shall be relinquished in whole or in part if a member team fails to perform in accordance with this Article or Article X - FORFEITURE, or to satisfy its financial obligations to NEOASA.

When a bond has been relinquished in whole or in part, the member team must re-post the bond with the Secretary-Treasurer of NEOASA. A member team which has relinquished its bond in whole or in part shall be suspended, disqualified, and ineligible to compete in NEOASA competition and all of its subsequent games shall be considered forfeit until the bond has been fully re-posted.

Each member team shall have a representative at each of the regular and special membership meetings of NEOASA and a voting delegate at the Annual Meeting of NEOASA. Each member team which fails to have such a representative or delegate present shall be subject to a fine equal to one-half (1/2) of the absent member team's performance bond and to relinquish one-half (1/2) of its bond in satisfaction of the fine. Each member team which fails to comply with the forwarding of Official Game Lineup Forms pursuant to Article Q - OFFICIAL GAME LINEUP FORMS, within two (2) days of the date of the game (so that the Official Game Lineup Form shall have been received by the third (3rd) day following the game) shall be subject to a fine equal to one-half (1/2) of the member team's performance bond and to relinquishment of one-half (1/2) of its bond in satisfaction of the fine.

At the discretion of NEOASA's Secretary-Treasurer, any member team's performance bond may be used in whole or in part to pay for any fines or debt which the member team may incur. The member team shall have seven (7) days after notification from NEOASA to re-post its bond with the Secretary-Treasurer. On the eighth (8th) day following such notification, the member team shall be suspended and disqualified and each subsequent game shall be considered forfeit until its bond has been fully re-posted.

For each soccer year, the Executive Committee shall set the amount of the performance bond.

E. Insurance

Liability soccer insurance is required by USSF and must be paid by a member team at the beginning of the soccer year. Member team may purchase additional insurance for medical coverage through NEOASA.

F. Division Schedules

A complete season schedule for NEOASA's divisions shall be formulated and proposed to NEOASA's member teams by NEOASA's Chairman of the Scheduling Committee before the start of each soccer season. Once this schedule has been released and approved by the Executive Board and the general membership at a preseason-scheduling meeting, the season's games may be rescheduled only if:

1. The referee decides at the scheduled field that the game cannot be played on the scheduled date and at the scheduled field for any reason not listed under Article X - FORFEITURE and both member teams agree in writing on their Official Game Lineup Forms, at the scheduled game that said game is to be rescheduled, specify the field, date and time of the agreed reschedule and timely submit such form to NEOASA; in the event no such agreement is submitted within the seven (7) days allowed for timely submission of Official Game Lineup Forms under Article Q, there shall be no reschedule and the scheduled game shall result in a forfeiture for both member teams.

2. The assigned officials fail to appear and both member teams agree in writing on their Official Game Lineup Forms at the scheduled game that said game is to be rescheduled, specify the field, date, and time of the agreed reschedule and timely submit such form to NEOASA; in the event no such agreement is submitted within the seven (7) days allowed for timely submission of Official Game Lineup Forms under Article IV, there shall be no reschedule and the scheduled game shall result in a forfeiture for both member teams.
3. NEOASA's President or Second Vice-President postpones scheduled game(s) due to weather or other conflicts.
4. It is ordered by NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee.
5. NEOASA's Game Scheduler has received at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled game a written agreement, signed by both member teams, stating that both member teams have agreed to reschedule such scheduled game and specifying the field, date, and time of the agreed reschedule.
NOTE: Any games not played within one (1) week after the season ends shall be referred to NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee. The season shall be defined by the approved schedule at the beginning of the season, or as otherwise extended by the Games Scheduling Committee. (As amended)

G. Division Standings

Division standings shall be determined for each season of competition by the total number of points earned by each member team within each division as follows:

EACH WIN	3 POINTS
EACH TIE	1 POINT
EACH LOSS	0 POINTS

1. Reporting of Results and Standings

For each season's competition, the President shall approve commissioners for each division of competition proposed for such season. Commissioners shall be responsible for receiving member team's reports of game scores for all games played within their division for that season and relaying to the Chairman of the Scheduling Committee. Each winning member team or, in the event of a tie, the home team, shall report the game score to its division commissioner within forty-eight (48) hours of the end of the game. Each commissioner shall relay such reports to the Chairman of the Scheduling Committee within twenty-four (24) hours. The Chairman of the Scheduling Committee shall use such reports in maintaining up-to-date unofficial divisional standings, which shall be available to member teams upon request and which shall be announced at regular and special membership meetings during the season. Such standings shall be unofficial and shall be subject to verification by results as recorded by Official Game Lineup Forms and Referee's Reports and applicable rulings of NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee or any other proper authority.

2. Tie-Breaking

If after comparing head to head competition, there still exists a tie. Then all division champions that are tied based on total points will be decided by a play-off game.

a. Play-Off Games

All play-off games shall be played as scheduled by NEOASA's Game Scheduling Committee within three (3) weeks of the season's end.

Players eligible to compete for a member team in play-off games shall be restricted to only those players who were registered with such team before or on the date of such member team's last regularly scheduled game of that season's competition. **REGULARLY SCHEDULED GAMES ARE DEFINED BY THE APPROVED SCHEDULE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE SEASON.**

NEOASA's Game Scheduling Committee shall determine field location. Home team shall be determined by a coin toss done by NEOASA's Game Scheduler Chairman. Home team shall have all standard duties, such as marking the field, setting the corner flags and nets, and providing a game ball.

Each game shall consist of two (2) forty-five (45) minute halves. In case of a tie there shall be two (2) fifteen (15) minute overtimes. This will not be sudden death. If at the end of the two (2) overtimes the two (2) member teams are tied, the game shall be decided by five (5) penalty shots.

Only those players on the field of play at the end of the overtimes shall be eligible to take the penalty shots. Each member team shall designate five (5) players to the referee before the penalty shots begin. The winner of the game shall be determined by the greater number of goals scored by its five (5) shots. If the member teams are tied at the end of five (5) penalty shots then each member team shall be allowed one (1) more shot on goal. These shots shall be taken only by those players who were on the field of play at the end of the overtimes and who have not shot previously. If the score is still tied, the member teams shall take one (1) more shot each until the tie is broken. No eligible player shall shoot twice until the tie is broken. No eligible player shall shoot twice until every eligible player has shot at least once.

b. Seasonal Composition of Divisions

The Game Scheduling Committee shall determine the placement of member teams within NEOASA's divisions for subsequent season schedules and competition in accordance with the following requirements:

- (1) Men/Women Division I shall consist of not less than six (6) teams nor more than 20% of the registered teams for the current season whenever possible. All other divisions shall consist of six (6) or eleven (11) teams whenever possible. (As amended)
- (2) Teams shall designate a preference for the division in which they would like to play during the current year (two seasons). This preference will be honored based on the date of their team registration for the current year and the number of other teams designating that division. That is, assignment to a division will be on a first come first served basis.
- (3) A division champion for two (2) consecutive seasons shall be elevated into the next higher division of competition available for the next season's competition. The lowest ranking team of the division into which the dominant team is being elevated will be demoted into the next lower division of competition that is available.
- (4) Any team not receiving assignment to the division of its preference can request that division at the pre-season scheduling meeting. Such a request shall be affected only by an affirmative vote of a majority of the membership in attendance at the pre-season scheduling meeting.
- (5) All new member teams entering competition shall be placed in the division of competition deemed appropriate by the Executive Committee.
- (6) All other member teams shall remain in the same division of competition for the next season's competition and shall not be elevated or demoted to another division by the Game Scheduling Committee unless:
 - (a) The elevation or demotion is necessitated by the fact that there otherwise would be too few member teams in the division of competition to which the member team is to be elevated or demoted, to permit scheduling of the next season's competition;
 - (b) In the case of elevation, the member team(s) proposed for elevation had the highest position(s) in its/their division at the end of the preceding season's competition;
 - (c) In the case of demotion, the member team(s) proposed for demotion had the lowest position(s) in its/their division's standings at the end of the preceding season's competition;
 - (d) Each such proposed elevation or demotion specifically is approved by NEOASA's membership at the pre-season scheduling meeting.

- (7) No member team shall be elevated or demoted to any division other than the next higher or the next lower division of competition available for the next season's competition.
- (8) Anything in subparagraphs 1 - 7 above, to the contrary notwithstanding, NEOASA's Game Scheduler, with prior approval of NEOASA's Executive Committee, may propose to NEOASA's membership at the pre-season scheduling meeting that any particular member team shall be placed in such division for the subsequent season as the Executive Committee and Game Scheduler shall designate; but, such proposal shall be effected only by an affirmative vote of a majority of the membership in attendance at the pre-season scheduling meeting.

H. Team Size

NEOASA limits the number of players listed on their official roster to 25 players. But, only 18 are eligible to suit up and play in any one game.

I. Uniforms

Each player participating in NEOASA competition must wear a complete team uniform consisting of a matching team jersey, suitable short pants, suitable socks, shin guards, and soccer-style shoes which are lawful under Law IV of FIFA Laws of the Game.

Each jersey must be clearly numbered on the back with a contrasting number at least six (6) inches high. No two (2) jerseys of a member team may have the same number. When two (2) member teams have identical colors, the visiting team shall be responsible for changing to a team jersey of an alternate color, which shall be numbered and otherwise suitable under this article.

J. Playing Field

All home teams shall equip the goals with nets and shall provide corner flags and a game ball. Fields shall be correctly marked PRIOR to the scheduled start of game.

Any team who uses the JSC/NEOASA Soccer Complex for an unauthorized scrimmage or practice shall be fined \$250.00. Such team will not be allowed to participate in regular NEOASA league play until such fine is paid to the NEOASA office or a member of the Executive Committee or the ADC.

K. Playing Eligibility

An amateur player shall not be restricted as to the member team for which he or she may play provided he or she and the team which he or she intends to join both comply with these Rules and Regulations.

Every amateur player shall be registered on an Amateur Player Registration Form, duly completed and submitted to NEOASA's Registrar. The applicable player registration fee shall be paid in advance upon the member team's purchase of the form.

1. Youth Amateur Players

A youth player is one who has not attained the age of nineteen (19) years of age on January 1 of the current seasonal year. A player who reaches his nineteenth birthday after January 1 of the seasonal year shall be eligible to compete as a youth amateur player. Every youth amateur player should consult the applicable rules and regulations of USSF, NEOASA, and the Oklahoma Soccer Association regarding the effect which playing in NEOASA's competition may have upon his or her youth status. A youth player must attain the age of fifteen (15) at registration to be eligible in NEOASA's competition. A player must present proof of age upon request by a team captain. When a member team accepts a youth player who is still in the custody of his/her parents or guardians, it shall be necessary to obtain a release from such parents or guardians. Any youth player currently playing on a youth team requesting permission to play on a Senior team must fill out the proper forms and have proper authorization according to USSF, NEOASA, and the Oklahoma Soccer Association (OSA).

2. Senior Amateur Players

A senior amateur player is one who does not qualify as a youth amateur player or as a professional player.

3. Amateur Master's and Over Twenty-Five Division Players

Only those senior male amateur players who shall attain the age of thirty (30) years and those senior female players who shall attain the age of twenty-five (25) years during the current soccer year pursuant to Article I of the Rules and Regulations. All senior amateur players seeking to register with a member team for competition in a Master's Division or Over Twenty-Five Division must present proof of their age to NEOASA's Registrar. A player must present proof of age upon request by a team captain.

4. Professional Players

Any player who has been registered as a professional player or who has received any payment or other remuneration as a professional player under USSF Rule 1102 shall be ineligible to register for or to participate as a registered player in NEOASA competition until the effective date of such player's reinstatement as an amateur by the USSF as per USSF Rule 1105 unless such player:

- a. Has complied with all applicable USSF registration requirements under USSF Rule 1103 (including those pertaining to transfers and releases and player loans);

- b. Has complied with all applicable USSF contract release requirements under USSF Rule 1104; and
- c. Has duly submitted proper application for registration as a NEOASA player under these Rules and Regulations to the NEOASA Registrar and Executive Committee and has obtained approval of his/her registration from the NEOASA Registrar and Executive Committee. Such approval shall be valid for one (1) soccer year's registration only; registration for any subsequent soccer year as a professional player shall require renewed compliance with this rule.

L. Player Registration

Individual player registration shall be by soccer year (September 1 through August 31). An individual player's registration shall not be transferable from one player to another after validation.

1. Procedures for Registration

Every amateur player shall be restricted to a USSF registration form duly completed and submitted to NEOASA Registrar as follows.

- a. Purchase all registration forms by payment of applicable registration fee and obtain player pass(es) from NEOASA's Registrar.
- b. Complete the registration form. Any form not properly filled out shall be refused. Due to the fact that NEOASA's Registrar is a volunteer, as are all NEOASA's officers, all member teams shall be responsible for submission of properly completed registration forms (see sample attached as Exhibit "A" at the end of these Rules and Regulations).
- c. Complete the left-hand side of the player pass. Attach an easily recognizable photo where designated. Once you have had the pass validated by NEOASA's Registrar, it may be used for seven (7) more registrations.
- d. Return the completed registration form and player pass to NEOASA's Registrar for validation.

M. Player Transfer

An amateur player registration on a USSF Registration Form is entitled to transfer from one (1) member team to another. In order to do so, the player must submit a duly completed USSF Transfer Form to NEOASA's Registrar for approval. When the duly completed player USSF Transfer Form and player pass are received, NEOASA's Registrar immediately shall validate the player's pass for the member team.

1. Transfer Limitations

An amateur player is restricted to three (3) transfers per season unless the member team has dropped from NEOASA competition prior to the last scheduled game of the season. Each time he/she transfers he/she must complete a USSF Transfer Form and have the same approved.

DURING EACH SEASON'S SCHEDULED COMPETITION, NO MEMBER TEAM SHALL ACCEPT A TRANSFER FROM ANOTHER TEAM AFTER THE SEVENTH (7TH) PLAYED GAME. AS USED HEREIN, SEASON'S PLAYED GAME REFERS TO GAMES PLAYED INCLUDING MAKE-UP GAMES. This limitation applies only to transfer of players who have been registered with another member team at any time during a season's scheduled competition. Dual registration is permissible with another LEAGUE according to USSF guidelines.

N. Player Passes

Player passes shall be required for all games between member teams and between member teams and other Oklahoma teams. Each NEOASA registered player shall have a player pass complete with a reasonably current picture, the OSA stamp, and validation by NEOASA's Registrar for the current soccer year.

Once a player pass is obtained by a player, it can be carried over from soccer year to soccer year by additional NEOASA validations. The player pass is only replaced when:

1. The player cannot be recognized from the picture by a referee;
2. All spaces provided have been validated; or
3. The player pass is lost, in which event the player shall notify NEOASA's Registrar in writing of the loss before obtaining another.

Player passes are the property of the player. When a player quits or changes to another team, his/her pass shall be returned to him/her upon request.

O. Registration Violations

Registration violations may result in player and/or member team suspension and disqualifications, performance bond forfeiture and/or game termination and forfeiture, depending on the severity of violations.

1. A player shall be registered with only one (1) member team at any time except dual registration for people over 30 may play for one (1) over 30 team and one (1) non-over 30 team. Such players must pay one (1) registration fee and one dual registration fee. Or triple registration for people over 40 may play for one (1) over 40 team, one (1) over 30 team, and one (1) open team. Such players must pay one (1) registration fee and two (2) dual registration fees.
2. A player shall have only one (1) valid player pass at any time.
3. A player shall have obtained parent's or guardian's release.
4. Professional players shall have complied with the requirements of Article XI-PLAYER ELIGIBILITY, PROFESSIONAL PLAYERS.
5. Each player shall become a free agent as of September 1, each year and must re-register for the new soccer year commencing on that date.

When dealing with NEOASA's Registrar, a registered player must have his/her player pass.

P. Team Rosters

All member teams shall present a legibly written or typed roster (see the example USSF Team Roster Form attached as Exhibit "F" at the end of these Rules and Regulations) prior to the start of the current soccer season. The roster shall provide the following information:

1. Team name.
2. Team representative to NEOASA with their address and telephone number.
3. Each registered player's name.
4. Each registered player's social security number.
5. Each registered player's address.

Q. Official Game Lineup Forms

Official Game Lineup Forms shall be provided by NEOASA's Registrar. Each member team shall complete an Official Game Lineup Form (see the sample Official Game Lineup Form attached as Exhibit "B" at the end of these Rules and Regulations) for each game and give it to the referee, together with player passes at least fifteen (15) minutes before the scheduled start of the game. All players' names, registration numbers and jersey numbers must be listed accurately.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS BASIC REOUIREMENT WILL RESULT IN GAME FORFEITURE AND LOSS OF BOND.

Upon completion of the scheduled game, the referee shall complete the Referee's Report on the reverse side of the Official Game Lineup Form and the winning team IMMEDIATELY shall forward BOTH forms to NEOASA's designated address. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the winning team or home team in the event of a tie, to lose game points they would have otherwise earned (see VII -DIVISION STANDINGS - Report of Results and Standings). If no referee is present at game time and both teams agree to play an official game, each team first shall sign both teams' forms and the winning team shall be responsible for sending both forms to NEOASA's designated address. Upon an ejection, notification of protest or appeal or any misconduct which in the referee's or team's judgments warrants action by NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee the forms and player pass(es) of the team(s) and player(s) involved shall be sent directly by the referee to NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee at its designated address.

R. Late Arriving Players

Players who are not present at the start of the game but are listed on the member's team's Official Game Lineup Form may enter the field of play provided the player first presents his/her player pass to the referee and obtains his/her permission to enter the field.

S. Substitution

The number of substitutions permitted in a game shall be unlimited, but no more than three (3) players shall be substituted at a time.

After a player's pass has been accepted by the referee, he may enter the field any number of times provided he has not been ejected by the referee. Substitutions shall be permitted on either team's goal kick, by either team when restarting the game, after a goal, injury, and at half time. Injury substitutions shall be made only with the referee's permission. All substitutions must enter the field of play at the half way line (but only after the player being substituted has left the field also at the half way line).

T. Player Suspension (Yellow Card)

Any NEOASA registered player who receives three (3) cautions during any single NEOASA playing season or during any single NEOASA tournament (regardless coach or spectator) shall be suspended for the next scheduled game of such season or tournament. A fine of up to \$20.00 for three (3) cautions per player, coach, or spectator will be assessed to the member team.

U. Ejection's - Player, Coach, or Spectator Suspensions

It is the responsibility of each member team to assure that none of its players suspended for any reason plays in any game during the suspension period. A member team playing a suspended player shall forfeit the game.

Any NEOASA registered player who is ejected from the playing field by the referee during, before, or after any NEOASA competition on account of misconduct under FIFA Laws of the Game (whether such misconduct be committed as a player, coach, or spectator) automatically shall be suspended for the next scheduled game of NEOASA competition. In such case, the player pass for such registered player who has been ejected as a player shall not be returned to the player or to his/her team, but shall be sent directly by the referee with his/her Referee's Report describing the ejection and the reason therefore to NEOASA's Appeals and Disciplinary Committee at its designated address. Likewise, the player pass for such registered player who has been ejected as a coach or spectator, if obtainable, shall be sent to the Committee, and if not obtainable, the identity or a description of such registered player shall be included in the Referee's Report and sent to the Committee. In the event that a non-registered coach or spectator is ejected, the referee shall include the identity or a description of such coach or spectator and the name or either team with which he/she may have been associated in the Referee's Report and forward it to the Committee.

Refusal by any registered player to leave the playing field upon ejection may result in termination of the game and in additional disciplinary action by the Committee. Any refusal by any non-registered coach or spectator may result in termination of the game and in disciplinary action against the team with which the coach or spectator is found to have been associated.

Upon receipt of such player pass(es) and Referee's Report, the Committee shall review the same in compliance with its procedures to determine if any additional disciplinary action should be taken. It shall impose any disciplinary action and hear and dispose of any appeals permitted under these Rules and Regulations in accordance with its procedure for such appeals (see Article XXV - IMPOSITION AND REVIEW OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND REVIEW OF GAME RULINGS).

The ejection of any registered player for violation of Law X.H (n) (violent conduct or serious foul play) of the FIFA Laws of the Game may result in the Committee imposing an extended suspension. The ejection of any non-registered coach or spectator for such violation may result in the Committee imposing appropriate sanctions against any member team with the coach or spectator is found to have been associated. Such sanctions may include suspension or disqualification of such team from one or more succeeding games of NEOASA competition and forfeiture of such games.

Although neither team may have been associated with and responsible for the misconduct of a registered player or non-registered coach or spectator, in all cases it shall be the responsibility of the home team to provide for the personal safety of the referee and officials. Any failure to meet this responsibility shall subject the home team to disciplinary action by the Committee. The ejection of any registered player for threatening, assaulting, or striking a referee automatically shall result in a suspension for at least one (1) calendar year and may result in suspension for a longer period by the Committee.

Any misconduct by a registered player, a non-registered coach, spectator, or by a team as a whole which in the referee's judgment has brought NEOASA competition into disrepute should be reported to the Committee by his Referee Report. A fine of up to \$20.00 per player, coach, or spectator will be assessed to the member team per ejection(s).

V. Officiating

Officials for all NEOASA sanctioned games shall be assigned by NEOASA's Referee Scheduler or their designate in cooperation with the State Referee Administrator.

W. Referee Evaluation

Each Official Game Lineup Form includes a detachable portion, which can be used to give the State Referee Administrator an opinion of the Official's performance. This is not required but will be appreciated. Only certified USSF referees shall be evaluated.

X. Forfeiture

1. Game Forfeiture for Non-Performance

A game shall be declared forfeited for non-performance and the performance bond relinquished in each of the following instances:

- a.** A team fails to appear for the game ready to play at the scheduled time. If neither team appears, a double forfeit shall be declared.
- b.** A team does not produce player pass(es) and/or a properly completed Official Game Lineup Form,
- c.** A team does not field at least seven (7) players at scheduled game time.

- d. The home field team does not provide an approved playing field or one acceptable to the assigned referee according to the FIFA Laws of the Game. NOTE: The field must be ready fifteen (15) minutes prior to game time.

The score recorded in the event of a forfeit will be 0-1 against the offending team or against both teams if both are involved.

2. Game Forfeiture

A game will be forfeited but the performance bond will NOT be relinquished in each of the following instances:

- a. A team plays a player who is not properly registered for the team.
- b. A team plays a player who is not listed on its Official Game Lineup Form.
- c. A team plays a player who is under suspension or otherwise ineligible under these Rules and Regulations.
- d. A team for any reason *is unable to play a scheduled game and is unable to reschedule* that game but informs the opposing team, the Referee Scheduler and the Game Scheduler at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the scheduled game.

The score recorded in the event of a forfeit will be 0-1 against the offending team or against both teams if both are involved.

Y. Imposition and Review of Disciplinary Action and Review of Game Rulings

1. Jurisdiction of NEOASA Appeals and Disciplinary Committee

a. Disciplinary Action Not Subject of a Game Ruling

The NEOASA Appeals and Disciplinary Committee shall have exclusive initial jurisdiction to impose and to review the automatic imposition of any disciplinary action authorized by these Rules and Regulations for violations of these rules by member teams, registered players, coaches or spectators which violations have not been the subject of a game ruling. This jurisdiction shall include, but shall not be limited, to:

- (1) Any suspension or disqualification of a member team and forfeiture of its games for failure to post its bond under Article IV of these Rules and Regulations;
- (2) Any game forfeiture under Article VI of these Rules and Regulations for failure to complete a season game;

- (3) Any loss of points by NEOASA or failure to make timely reports of game results under Article VII;
- (4) Any violation of Articles XI-XVI of these Rules and Regulations not the subject of a game ruling;
- (5) Any suspension of a registered player, coach or spectator under Article XX of these Rules and Regulations;
- (6) Any misconduct by a member team registered player, coach, or spectator not the subject of a game ruling under these Rules and Regulations; and
- (7) Any game forfeiture under Article XXIV of these Rules and Regulations not the subject of a game ruling.

b. Appeals of Game Rulings

In addition, pursuant to Article VI, Section 6 of NEOASA's By-Laws, the Appeals and Disciplinary Committee shall have exclusive appellate jurisdiction to hear and to determine all appeals to NEOASA of all game rulings. This jurisdiction shall include but shall not be limited to:

- (1) Ejection's of registered players, coaches, or spectators;
- (2) Any game rulings resulting in an early game termination or in a game forfeiture; and
- (3) Any other game ruling which are duly appealed by the adversely affected team and which are found by the Committee to have a material effect on the outcome of the game.

2. Procedures of Appeals Not Subject of a Game Ruling

a. Disciplinary Action Not Subject of a Game ruling

(1) Automatic Disciplinary Action

The Committee shall not be required to take any action in order for any automatic mandatory disciplinary action prescribed by these Rules and Regulations to take effect. For example, the automatic and mandatory suspension of disqualification of a member team and forfeiture of its games while suspended or disqualified under Article IV shall take effect immediately upon failure to comply with that with that Article.

However, any such automatic and mandatory disciplinary action MAY be reviewed by the Committee if the member team or the individuals subject to such action files an appeal within seventy-two (72) hours of the action taking effect in compliance with this Article and the Committee's rules not inconsistent with this Article.

- (a) The name, address, phone number and registration number of the party making the appeal (appellant);
- (b) A concise statement of the facts alleged to constitute the violation; and
- (c) A concise statement of why these facts should not be deemed a violation and/or a concise statement of why the alleged violation does not warrant the continuation of the automatic mandatory disciplinary action prescribed by these Rules and Regulations.

In order to be duly filed, the Appeal must be delivered to the Chairman of the Committee personally or by mail at such address as the Committee shall designate and must be accompanied by a cashier's or certified check made payable to NEOASA as an appeal bond in the amount of \$25.00 within the seventy-two (72) hours' period.

The Committee shall review and decide whether to hear the appeal at its next regularly scheduled meeting. Neither the appellant nor any other party shall have the right to be present at or make any oral presentation as such meeting by the Committee MAY notify any other party involved of the pendency of the Appeal and permit the appellant and any other party involved to be present and to make a written or an oral presentation at the same meeting. If the Committee decides to hear the Appeal, it shall review the written appeal and other information before it can either affirm the automatic mandatory disciplinary action, the Appeal Bond shall be relinquished and shall be delivered to NEOASA's Secretary/Treasurer for deposit into NEOASA's treasury. In the event that the Committee modifies or terminates the disciplinary action in whole or in part, it shall return the Appeal Bond to the appellant.

(2) Discretionary Disciplinary Action

The Committee shall be responsible for imposition of any discretionary disciplinary action authorized under these Rules and Regulations and shall determine the terms and conditions thereof consistent with these Rules and Regulations.

The Committee MAY take notice of, investigate, and schedule for hearing and determine any alleged violation of these Rules and Regulations for which discretionary action is authorized hereunder upon its own motion or upon such alleged violation being brought to its attention through submission of a Referee's Report or through submission of a legibly written or typed complaint from any member team. However, before imposing any discretionary disciplinary action, the Committee shall attempt to notify the alleged offender at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting scheduled before taking such action of the nature of the alleged violation and the date, time and place of such meeting which shall set forth the same information required of an appeal under a.(1) of this section of this Article above. Upon reaching a decision, the Committee shall attempt to notify the alleged offender of the terms and conditions of any disciplinary action which it has deemed appropriate as soon as possible

b. Appeals of Game Rulings

- (1) The Committee shall review all game rulings resulting in the ejection of a registered player, coach, or spectator, in the early game terminal on, or in a game forfeiture AUTOMATICALLY upon the Committee's receipt of the Referee's Report describing such a ruling at its next regularly scheduled meeting after receipt of such report.

Any mandatory and automatic or discretionary disciplinary action prescribed by these rules and resulting from a game ruling shall be handled by the Committee in accordance with the procedures set forth under a.(1) and a.(2) of this Article above and such additional rules as the Committee may adopt not inconsistent therewith.

Any early game termination or game forfeiture shall be reviewed by the Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting after receipt of the report. Both of the teams involved in any such early termination or game forfeiture shall be permitted to submit legibly written or typed statements for or against the forfeiture or termination which shall contain:

- (a) The name, address phone number and registration number of the party making the appeal (appellant);
- (b) A concise statement of the facts alleged to constitute the violation; and
- (c) A concise statement of why these facts should not be deemed a violation and/or a concise statement of why the alleged violation does not warrant the continuation of the automatic mandatory disciplinary action prescribed by these Rules and Regulations.

In order to be duly filed, the Appeal must be delivered to the Chairman of the Committee personally or by mail at such address as the Committee shall designate and must be accompanied by a cashier's or certified check made payable to NEOASA as an appeal bond in the amount of \$25.00 within the seventy- two (72) hours' period.

The Committee shall review and decide whether to hear the appeal and dispose of any such appeals it decides to hear as provided for appeals of mandatory automatic disciplinary actions under a.(1) of this section of this Article above. If the Committee decides to hear the appeal, it shall review the written appeal and any further information before it and either affirm the game ruling or reverse or modify it, and, if warranted, may order the game to be replayed or declared a forfeiture in favor of either team. The appeal bond shall be handled as provided under a.(1) of this section of this Article.

3. Appeals from the Committee

Any Committee decision may be appealed by an adversely affected party by electing one of the following:

- a.** Appeal directly to the NEOASA membership
- b.** Appeal directly to the Executive Committee

Any decision made by the Executive Committee on an ADC decision, properly appealed, may, in turn, be appealed to the NEOASA membership. Such an appeal may be taken by the Chairman of the ADC on behalf of the ADC, without bond.

All appeals to ADC decisions shall be brought as follows:

Appellant shall file a legibly written or typed appeal with the President of NEOASA within seven (7) days of notification of the decision that he desires to appeal, containing the following:

- a.** The names of the appellant, with name address, phone number, and registration number of team delegate or individual appellant.
- b.** A copy of the original appeal(s) if any.
- c.** A concise statement of the decision appealed from.
- d.** Citations of the errors made under the applicable Rules, whether NEOASA OSA, USSF, or FIFA.

- e. A specific request, indicating the body before whom the appellant desires to bring the appeal.
- f. A \$50.00 bond, in the form of a cashier's check, cash, or certified check, posted at the time of the appeal made payable to NEOASA

Upon timely receipt of an appeal, the President either shall convene an Executive Committee meeting as quickly as is reasonably possible for the purpose of hearing the appeal, or, where appropriate, shall place the same on the agenda of the next membership meeting.

The membership may refuse to entertain and dismiss the appeal by appropriate motion adopted by a majority of delegates present and voting, in which case the appeal bond shall be relinquished and paid in to NEOASA's treasury. If the appeal is not dismissed, the appellant and the appellee shall be afforded an equal opportunity to present the merits of the appeal to the membership, and it shall be decided by a majority vote of those delegates present voting. The result shall be duly recorded in the minutes; no other notification of the result shall be necessary.

If an appeal is successful, then the bond for such appeal, and only such appeal, shall be returned to the appellant. If the appeal is unsuccessful, the bond shall be relinquished and paid to NEOASA's treasury.

Any decision by NEOASA membership may be appealed to the OSA by compliance with its applicable Senior Rules and Administrative Procedures or other applicable rules.

4. Other Committee Rules

- a. All Official Game Lineup Forms for games in which there has been an ejection or caution, or for games which have been terminated early or which have been declared game forfeitures shall be forwarded immediately to the Committee (at such address as the Committee shall designate) by the referee or the winning or home teams (see Article XVII). Any written reports of misconduct under these Rules and Regulations or other violations within the Committee's jurisdiction also should be sent to the Committee as such address immediately.
- b. Members of the Committee shall be nominated by the Chairman (First Vice President) and approved by the President in accordance with NEOASA's By-Laws provided that other than the Chairman, no voting member of the Committee shall also be a member of the Executive Committee. No member shall vote on, participate in, or be present during any discussion of any matter in which he/she or his/her team is directly involved, or by which his/her team would gain an undue advantage by virtue of his/her participation. The President and the State Referee Administrator, or some other duly designated representative of the State Referee's unit, shall serve as non-voting ex-officio members of the Committee.

- c. Any reports of referee misconduct shall be submitted to the Committee for its review. The Committee may investigate any such reports and forward them along with its recommendations to the State Referee Disciplinary Committee for appropriate action under State Rules and Administrative Procedures.
- d. The Committee shall have a secretary who shall maintain minutes of its members and records of all decisions. Pursuant to NEOASA's By-Laws, all decisions shall be reported by the Chairman at NEOASA's membership meetings.

Z. Small Side Club, Leagues and Competitions

Consistent with NEOASA's By-Laws permitting applications for membership by two (2) or more teams comprising a club or league within NEOASA's green country jurisdiction, and the approval and admission of Bartlesville Soccer Club (**BSC**) and Claremore Soccer Club (**CSC**) adult small-side (i.e., less than eleven (11) players on the field) clubs or leagues as members of NEOASA

1. Subject to oversight by the Executive Committee, BSC and CSC are authorized and encouraged to form adult soccer teams for small-side soccer competitions during the Fall, Spring and Adult Summer Soccer Seasons in, respectively, Bartlesville and Claremore, including, the scheduling of small-side games, the assigning of licensed referees to officiate these games, and the adoption and enforcement of rules of competition applicable to these games consistent with any applicable requirements of NEOASA, the Oklahoma Soccer Association (**OSA**) and the United States Adult Soccer Association (**USASA**).
2. The Executive Committee shall determine procedure and fees payable for registration of CSC's and BSC's adult players consistent with any applicable OSA and USASA requirements.
3. The Executive Committee also shall have authority to approve rules of competition for small-side soccer competitions and to waive or to modify requirements of NEOASA's **Rules and Regulations** as appropriate in its judgment to enable the organization, the scheduling and to enhance the growth of small-side competitions.

ZZ. State Championship Format

The NEOASA representative team for any OSA championship shall be determined by a playoff game between the Spring and Fall League winners of Men/Women Division 1, and Men/Women Masters Division, for those respective divisions, Rules of Competition shall be those listed in Section III(G)(e) Playoff games. If the same team wins both seasons, they shall advance without a playoff. Only teams registered during the season preceding the competition (entire USSF Registration Season September 1 through August 31) will be allowed to compete (teams that register only in the Spring or only in the Fall will not be allowed to compete). The NEOASA Registrar will validate team rosters. (As amended)

Any team competing in national competitions will adhere to USSF Senior Division Rules concerning team formation. The NEOASA Registrar or a designated representative will be responsible for proper registration of any team competing in state or national competition.

The NEOASA Registrar shall validate and forward all team rosters for any state or national competition to the proper state or national committee.

These rules and Regulations shall be subject to amendment by the affirmative vote of a majority of NEOASA's membership present at any regular or any duly called special membership meeting. No such amendments shall be contrary to or inconsistent with NEOASA's Constitution and By-Laws. All such amendments shall be duly recorded by NEOASA's Secretary-Treasurer and the Secretary-Treasurer shall revise these Rules and Regulations so as to incorporate any such amendments at the end of each soccer year.

IV. EXHIBITS

- A. Exhibit “A” - Example of Player Registration Form**
- B. Exhibit “B” - Example of Official Game Lineup Form**
- C. Exhibit “C” - Diagram Containing Field Measurements**
- D. Exhibit “D” - Example of OSA Under-19 Player Permission Form**
- E. Exhibit “E” - Example of Senior Trial Games Permission Form**
- F. Exhibit “F” - Example of USSF Team Roster Form**